






 
 

STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION  
Sloan Resubdivision – 2 Lots (no additional lots) 

 
TO:   Chairman Kehr and Members of the Plan Commission 
DATE:  April 14, 2021  
FROM:  Catherine Czerniak, Director of Community Development 
SUBJECT: Request for Approval of a Tentative and Final Plat of Resubdivision –  
 477 Illinois Road  
 
OWNER 
Rose A. Sloan  
477 Illinois Road  
Lake Forest, IL  60045 
 

PROPERTY LOCATION 
477 Illinois Road – a Lot in Depth  
 
West side of Illinois Road, Near the 
Intersection with Rosemary Road  
 

 

ZONING  
R-1  Single Family 
Residence District/Local 
Historic District 
   

REPRESENTATIVES 
Sean Sloan, Family Member 
Michael Adelman, Attorney  
 
Summary of the Request 
This is a request for tentative and final approval of a plat of resubdivision for properties in the R-1 
zoning district.  The properties are in the City’s Local Historic District but are not located within the 
Historic Residential and Open Space Preservation District.  Therefore, no Special Use Permit is 
required.   
 
The purpose of the resubdivision is to reconfigure two existing lots, incorporate an additional parcel 
of land, and re-align access and utility easements.  No additional lots are proposed and no 
installation of public infrastructure is required as part of the proposed resubdivision.   
 
Concurrent approval of the tentative and final plat is appropriate in this case because no public 
infrastructure improvements are necessary and no engineering plans are required.  As with 
development of any vacant lot, complete drainage and grading plans will be required at the time a 
building permit application is submitted along with plans for a new house.    
 
Background Information 
The petitioner’s statement of intent provides a detailed background of the property.  The 
background information is summarized below. 
 
The Sloan property is comprised of two lots in depth as it exists today.  A lot in depth is defined in 
the City Code as: 
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A lot in which the width of the access area for ingress and egress is less than the minimum lot width required for a lot 
in the zoning district in which the property is located.   
 
The minimum lot width required for a property in the R-1 zoning district is 75 feet.  The Sloan 
property, at the Illinois Road street frontage, is 20 feet wide, the width of the driveway to the 
property.  There are a limited number of other lots in depth on the west side of Illinois Road likely 
the result of the depth of some of the lots in this area.  The depth of the lots on the west side of 
Illinois Road reflects the earlier idea that a public road could ultimately be constructed on the east 
side of the railroad tracks, to the rear of the lots fronting on Illinois Road.  Construction of a road at 
that location never occurred and infill development was constructed on the rear portions of some of 
the lots over the decades.   
 
The Sloan property was originally part of Lots 241 and 242 of the Lake Forest Plat recorded in 1857. 
In 1968, after City approval, the Calvert Subdivision was recorded, establishing a single lot in depth, 
today a portion of the Sloan property, from parts of the original Lots 241 and 242 and establishing 
the 20 foot access as it exists today.  (A copy of the Calvert Subdivision plat is attached to this report 
as background.)  The existing home on the site was constructed in 1968, after the recording of the 
subdivision plat.   
 
The property was further subdivided in 1978 by the then owner, Mr. Rasmussen.  After City 
approval, the Rasmussen’s Resubdivision was recorded creating two lots in depth.  (A copy of the 
Rasmussen’s Resubdivision plat is attached to this report as background.)  The southern lot of the 
Rasmussen’s Resubdivision, Lot 2, has always been in common ownership with Lot 1 as it is today.  
Essentially Lot 2, and later the additional parcel to the south, have served as a large yard area for the 
existing home on the 477 Illinois Road property.  Over the years, some improvements to the house, 
driveway and yard, including a shed, have encroached toward or on to Lot 2.  Any improvements 
existing on the newly configured Lot 2 will need to be removed prior to the sale of Lot 2 into a 
separate ownership.     
   
The Sloan’s purchased the property in 1983, both Lots 1 and 2 of the Rasmussen’s Resubdivision, 
and Sloan family members have resided in the house since that time.  In 1986, the Sloans purchased 
additional property to the south of Lot 2, the rear portion of the property addressed as 483 Illinois 
Road.  This land transfer occurred between the two private property owners, the Sloans and the 
Hallens who owned the 483 Illinois Road property at that time.  The transfer of the parcel was not 
authorized or approved by the City through an administrative property line shift or other process 
however, new surveys were recorded with the County and the 483 property was later sold to new 
owners.  As a result the transfer of the parcel in 1986, the 483 Illinois Road property today is 
nonconforming with respect to the setbacks and that is an issue that current and future owners of 
that property will need to deal with if there is a desire to improve the property.   
 
Given the Sloans current desire to sell Lot 2, addressing or more accurately, correcting what is 
essentially a remnant parcel located south of Lot 2 of the Rasmussen’s Resubdivision is appropriate 
to assure adherence with the current setbacks in the Code and to establish proper easements to serve 
Lot 2.  The City does not have the opportunity at this point in time for undo the land transfer that 
occurred in the 1980’s only the ability to properly document the parcel and establish appropriate 
setbacks and easements.     
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Present Request 
As noted above, the Sloan’s are requesting approval of a plat of resubdivision in preparation for the 
sale of the property.  The proposed subdivision: 
 

1. Expands the size of Lot 1 to the south to accommodate the existing improvements and to 
adhere to the current setbacks.  The lot in depth setbacks were not in the Code at the time 
the Rasmussen’s Resubdivision was approved. 

 
2. Incorporates the parcel acquired by the Sloans in 1986 into Lot 2 to reflect the common 

ownership of the property, the prior land sale, and to eliminate the current remnant parcel 
status of the parcel.   
 

3. Establishes the current lot in depth setbacks on both Lots 1 and 2. 
 

4. Reconfigures the access and utility easements to reflect the reconfigured lots.   
 
As proposed, Lot 1, exclusive of the easement, totals 31,850 square feet.  The access easement on Lot 
1 totals 9,500 square feet.  Lot 2 totals 25,145 square feet.  The minimum lot size for lots in depth in 
the R-1 zoning district is 16,250 square feet.  Both lots as proposed exceed the required minimum lot 
size.   
 
The current Code also requires a minimum lot width at the front yard setback line of 130 feet before 
a lot in depth can be created.  However, in this case, the two lots in depth already exist by virtue of 
both the Calvert Subdivision which created the initial lot in depth and the Rasmussen’s Resubdivision 
which created the second lot in depth.  A new lot in depth is not being created so this Code provision 
has not effect in this case. 
 
Although the Rasmussen’s Resubdivision established 10 foot setbacks on both lots one and two, the 
resubdivision as now proposed reflects the current setbacks for lots in depth of 40 feet from all sides 
recognizing the relationship to neighboring properties.   
 
The plat as presented provides a properly configured easement for both access and utilities to serve 
Lot 2.     
 
Public Notice 
Public notice of this hearing was provided in accordance with Code requirements and standard 
practices.  Public notice was published in a newspaper of local circulation and mailed to property 
owners in the surrounding area.  The agenda for this meeting was posted at various public locations 
and on the City’s website.  To date, staff has received one contact in response to the mailed notice 
regarding ongoing drainage issues on the east side of Illinois Road in the general vicinity of this 
petition.  The concern was forwarded to the City’s Public Works Department for follow up since it 
involves a matter not directly related to this resubdivision request.             
 
Staff Recommendation 
Recommend tentative and final approval of the resubdivision to the City Council subject to the 
following condition. 
 

1. Prior to the recording of the plat of subdivision, all applicable fees shall be paid. 
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2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for a new residence on Lot 2, all applicable impact 
fees shall be paid.     
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